SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
FI RST SPECI AL SESSI ON
May 25, 2017
9:02 a.m

9:02: 26 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
meeting to order at 9:02 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair

Senator Cick Bishop, Vice-Chair (via tel econference)
Senat or Shel | ey Hughes

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Peter M cciche
Senat or Nat asha von | nmhof

ALSO PRESENT

Senator Cathy G essel; Sara Chanbers, Deputy D rector

Division of Cor por at i ons, Busi ness, and Prof essional
Li censing, Departnment of Commerce, Community and Econom c
Devel opnent, Representative Tamm e W/ son.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Jay Butler, Chief Medical Oficer, Departnent of Health and
Soci al Services, Anchorage.

SUMVARY

SB 79 OPI A DS; PRESCRI PTI ONS; DATABASE; LI CENSES
SB 79 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#sb79

SENATE BILL NO. 79




"An Act relating to the prescription of opioids;
establishing the Voluntary Nonopioid Directive Act;
relating to the controlled substance prescription
dat abase; relating to the practice of dentistry;
relating to the practice of nedicine; relating to the
practice of podiatry; relating to the practice of
osteopathy; relating to the practice of nursing;
relating to the practice of optonetry; relating to the
practice of veterinary nedicine; related to the duties
of the Board of Pharmacy; and providing for an
effective date."

9:03: 37 AM

SENATOR CATHY d ESSEL, announced that she had listened to
the commttee's questions from the previous neeting. She
wanted to share her thoughts based on her experience.

9:07: 08 AM

Senator G essel shared a story of a violent person who
acted in an extrenme manner.

9:10: 39 AM

Senat or G essel discussed the history of the Prescription
Drug Monitoring Program ( PDVP) .

9:12:17 AM

Senator G essel explained the history of the Al aska Opioid
Pol i cy Task Force.

9:13: 01 AM

Senator G essel referenced a presentation titled, "The
Sci ence of Qpioid Use Disorder” (copy on file).

9:26: 01 AM

Senator G essel noted that the bill addressed dosage, or
rather only addressed duration. She shared a statenent from
the Tennessee Board of Nursing. She announced that the
norphine mlligram equivalent (MVE) was used to prescribe
opi oids. She stated that all clinicians have access to the
i nformation.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 05/ 25/ 17 9:02 A M



9:35:18 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon remarked that there was an assertion
from the Board of Pharnacy that the manufacturer of the
medi cati on had set dosage guidelines. She wondered how that
dosage was determ ned. Senator G essel replied that

Co- Chair MacKinnon remarked that there was an assertion
that there was a reliance on the drug conpany's suggested
dosage. She remarked that sonme may not understand the
possibility of overprescribing. Senator Gessel replied
that there was a need for continuing education to inform
the clinicians.

9:39:49 AM

Senat or Hughes wondered whether the size of a person was
considered in the dosage anmount. Senator G essel replied
t hat size was not consi dered.

Senat or Hughes queried the alignment with the bill and the
task force's reconmmendations. Senator G essel replied that
many recomendations were in the bill, but did not know
whet her the reconmendati ons were the basis of the bill. She
deferred to Dr. Butler

9:41: 58 AM

JAY BUTLER, CHI EF MEDI CAL OFFI CER, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
SOCI AL SERVI CES, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), announced
that the recommendations of the task force were an
important informative factor in the drafting of the bill.

Co- Chair MacKinnon queried the seven-day limt decision.
Dr. Butler replied that, in general, the discussion in the
task force focused on the guidelines from the Center for
Di sease Control (CDC).

Co- Chair MacKi nnon remarked that the CDC had a recomended
dosage. She wondered why that recomendation was not
included in the bill. Dr. Butler replied that the CDC had
guidelines. He did not want to be too specific in the
dosage. He stressed that the focus was on the size of the
prescription.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 05/ 25/ 17 9:02 A M



Senat or Hughes wondered whether the state boards had
adopted CDC guidelines. Senator Gessel replied in the
affirmati ve.

9:50: 21 AM

SARA CHAMBERS, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, DI VISION OF CORPORATI ONS,
BUSI NESS, AND  PROFESSI ONAL LI CENSI NG, DEPARTMENT OF
COVWERCE, COVMUNITY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, expl ained
t hat the legislature had recently requested opioid
guidelines from all boards. She stated that the CDC
guidelines had recommended the state of Washington's
Interagency Quideline on Opioid Prescriptions, W th
| owering the norphine equivalent to 90.

Senat or Hughes wondered whether the board were creating a
simlar regulation. M. Chanbers replied that the boards
were at different stages of regulation devel opnent. She
stated that the bill would accompdate the flexibility.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon queried additional comrents. Dr. Butler
shared that one in twenty people were still on opioids one
year after their first dose.

10: 00: 10 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon remarked that the bill addressed end of
life issues that allowed doctors to keep patients on |ong
term opioid prescriptions. She noted that there were nany
medi cations |left after soneone that she knew had died, and
then taken by |law enforcenent. She wondered whether there
was a way to track the opioids. Dr. Butler replied that
| eftover pills were often put into the comunity. He stated
that there were not nmechanisns for tracking dispensed
opi oids. He remarked he had worked with hospice to provide
activated charcoal to neutralize the opioid safe for
di sposal in a landfill.

10: 05: 46 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon remarked that there were intermttent
drug disposal opportunities in her community. She queried
di sposal recommendati ons, and whether that was addressed in
the bill. Dr. Butler replied that it was not specifically
addressed in the bill. He supported drug take-back
activities.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 05/ 25/ 17 9:02 A M



10: 11: 06 AM

Vice-Chair Bishop wondered whether the danage could be
reversed. Senator G essel replied that Vivitrol nmay be able
to reverse the effects of addiction.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon wondered whet her t he effects of
addiction could be reversed. Dr. Butler replied that it was
unknown whet her the effects of addiction could be reversed.

10: 16: 19 AM

Senator O son remarked that nmany studies noted that the
receptors were scarred after drug abuse.

Vi ce-Chair Bishop wondered whether was a way to nake a
first prescription a |lower equivalent. Senator @G essel
replied that there should be a clarification that 90
mlligrans a day of norphine level -equivalent is the
maxi mum dosage.

Co- Chair MacKinnon recalled that there was a working day
i ssue, and wondered whet her there was adequate |anguage for
the expectation of a possible dispensary day closure. M.
Chanbers replied that the Board of Pharnmacy allowed sone
pharmacies to opt-out, because they were not engaging in
activity that required reporting. She stated that the opt-
out option would extend to the pharmacy's day off from the
week.

10: 22: 19 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered whether the |anguage in the
bill was sufficient. Ms. Chanbers replied in the
affirmative.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon announced that there was a series of
guestions that had been submtted to the adm nistration.

Senator (O son appreciated the perspective of Senator
G essel's presentation

Co-Chair MacKi nnon wanted to involve the boards in the
process.

10: 26: 58 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 05/ 25/ 17 9:02 A M



Co- Chair Hof fman shared that the main issue in rural Al aska
was mail order drugs. He wondered how other states and
countries approached the issue. Dr. Butler replied that
there should be a multifaceted approach.

Senator G essel stated that the drugs were going into the
villages through air freight, and there was a bill that
addressed the issue currently in the |egislature.

SB 79 was HEARD and HELD in conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ QURNVENT
10: 31: 01 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:31 a.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 05/ 25/ 17 9:02 A M



